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          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Good morning,

          3  ladies and gentlemen, to the Subcommittee on

          4  Landmarks, Public Siting, Maritime Uses.

          5                 Okay, LU No. 549. Staten Island

          6  Community Board 1.  20065007 HKR. N 060009 HKR.

          7  Designation List No. 365, LP-2179 by the Landmarks

          8  Preservation Commission pursuant to Section 3020 of

          9  the New York City Charter of the John DeGroot House

         10  located at 1674 Richmond Terrace, Block 188, Lot 40.

         11                 LU No. 565 has been laid over at the

         12  request of Council Member Helen Sears. This item is

         13  in her district.

         14                 LU No. 576. Manhattan, Community

         15  Board- 1. 20065004 HKM. N 060005 HKM. Designation

         16  Lis No. 365, LP- 2166 by the Landmarks Preservation

         17  Commission pursuant to Section 3020 of the New York

         18  City Charter and of the Robert and Anne Dickey

         19  building, located at 67 Greenwich Street, Block 19,

         20  Lot 11.

         21                 LU No. 577. Manhattan Community Board

         22  1. 20065005 HKM. N 060007 HKM. Designation List No.

         23  365, LP-2171, by the Landmarks Preservation

         24  Commission pursuant to Section 3020 of the New York

         25  City Charter of The Windermere located at 400-406
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          2  West 57th Street, Block 1066, Lot 32.

          3                 LU No. 557. Brooklyn Community Board-

          4  1. C 050027 PQK. Application submitted by the

          5  Department of Sanitation and the Department of

          6  Citywide Administrative Services, pursuant to

          7  Section 197-c of the New York City Charter, for the

          8  acquisition of property located at 306 Rutledge

          9  Street, Block 2228, Lot 11, for continued use as a

         10  sanitation garage.

         11                 We're going to deal with the landmark

         12  items first. And we have Diane Jackier from the

         13  Landmarks Preservation Commission as our first

         14  witness.

         15                 Who are all our guests today? In the

         16  back there is a group. Whoever is willing to answer.

         17                 (Not using microphone. Speaking from

         18  the audience.)

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Go ahead.

         20                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning, Council

         21  members. My name is Diane Jackier, Director of

         22  Community and Government Affairs for the Landmarks

         23  Preservation Commission. I am here today to testify

         24  on the Commission's designation of the John DeGroot

         25  House in Staten Island as a New York City landmark.
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          2                 On May 17, 2005, the Landmarks

          3  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

          4  designation. Nine people spoke in favor, including

          5  the owner and representatives of Councilman Michael

          6  McMahon, the New York Landmarks Conservancy, the

          7  Westerleigh Improvement Society, the Preservation

          8  League of Staten Island, the Historic Districts

          9  Council, the Society for the Architecture of the

         10  City and the West Brighton Restoration Society. No

         11  one spoke in opposition.

         12                 The Commission also received letters

         13  in support of designation from Staten Island Borough

         14  Historian Richard Dickenson, Staten Island Community

         15  Board 1 and architect David John Carnivale. On June

         16  28, 2005, the Commission designated the building a

         17  New York City landmark.

         18                 Constructed circa 1870, the John

         19  DeGroot House is one of the only two houses in the

         20  Second Empire Style that remain standing on Richmond

         21  Terrace between Sailors Snug Harbor and Port

         22  Richmond, recalling the period when that

         23  thoroughfare was lined with grand houses. John

         24  DeGroot, the builder of this house, worked for over

         25  50 years for the nearby New York Dyeing and Printing
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          2  Establishment, a textile dyeing business that was

          3  the first and one of the most important early

          4  industrial concerns on the island.

          5                 The front portion of the house,

          6  comprised of a three-story Mansarded main building

          7  and a two-story mansarded wing, is carefully sited

          8  to take advantage of the sloping topography. A fine

          9  example of the Second Empire Style, the building

         10  retains its historic form and most of its historic

         11  detailing. Notable features include the floor length

         12  parlor windows and double-door entry, heavy molded

         13  cornices and scrolled brackets, and the unique

         14  convex Mansard roof that still retains its hexagonal

         15  slate shingles and gabled dormers.

         16                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         17  the designation of the John DeGroot House.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Keep going.

         19                 MS. JACKIER: I'll keep going. Okay.

         20                 I'm also here to testify on the

         21  designation of the Robert And Anne Dickey House in

         22  Manhattan as a New York City landmark.

         23                 On October 19th, 2004, the Landmarks

         24  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         25  designation. The hearing was continued on April
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          2  21st, 2005. Sixteen people spoke in favor of

          3  designation, including representatives of State

          4  Assemblyman Sheldon Silver, the Lower Manhattan

          5  Emergency Preservation Fund, the Municipal Arts

          6  Society, the New York Landmarks Conservancy, the

          7  Historic Districts Council and the Greenwich Village

          8  Society for Historic Preservation.

          9                 Two of the building's owners, and

         10  five of their representatives, testified against the

         11  designation. The Commission also received numerous

         12  communications in support of designation, including

         13  letters from Council Member Alan J. Gerson,

         14  Community Board 1 in Manhattan, the Northeast Office

         15  of the National Trust for Historic Preservation, the

         16  Preservation League of New York State, and architect

         17  Robert A.M. Stern. The building had been previously

         18  heard by the Commission on October 19, 1965 and

         19  November 17th, 1965. On June 28, 2005, the

         20  Commission designated the building a New York City

         21  landmark.

         22                 The very wide, nearly 41 feet,

         23  Federal style town house at 67 Greenwich Street was

         24  built around 1809 to 1810, when this was one of the

         25  most fashionable addresses for wealthy merchants in
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          2  lower Manhattan.

          3                 As constructed, the house was

          4  three-and-a-half stories with a high-peaked roof and

          5  featured Flemish bond brickwork, splayed stone

          6  lintels with keystones on the flat four-bay front

          7  facade, and an elliptical bow on three of the five

          8  bays on the rear facade, which also had splayed

          9  stone lintels.

         10                 Until 1820, this was the resident

         11  (sic) of merchant Robert Dickey and his wife, Anne.

         12  Typical of the period, Dickey conducted his business

         13  from the rear of the property on Lumbar Street,

         14  which was later Trinity Place. From 1823 until 1919,

         15  the house was owned by Peter Schermerhorn, director

         16  of the Bank of New York State -- the Bank of New

         17  York and his sons.

         18                 The Dickey House is one of only five

         19  surviving Federal style houses in what was

         20  Manhattan's most elite neighborhood of the

         21  post-Revolutionary War era, and is one of only seven

         22  pre-1810 houses located of Chambers Street, the

         23  oldest section of New York City.

         24                 The house is further distinguished as

         25  the only remaining Federal style town house in
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          2  Manhattan that has a bowed facade.

          3                 The Commission urges you to affirm

          4  the designation.

          5                 Do you want me to do the last one?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You're doing

          7  well.

          8                 MS. JACKIER: I am also here to

          9  testify on the Commission's designation of the

         10  Windermere in Manhattan, as a New York City

         11  landmark.

         12                 On January 18th, 2005, the Landmarks

         13  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         14  designation of the Windermere.

         15                 The hearing was continued on April

         16  21, 2005, June 7th, and June 21st, 2005. Twenty

         17  people spoke in favor of designation, including

         18  Council Member Gail Brewer, representatives of State

         19  Senator Tom Duane, Community Board 4 in Manhattan,

         20  the New York Landmarks Conservancy, the Municipal

         21  Arts Society, the Historic Districts Council, the

         22  Metropolitan Chapter of the Victorian Society in

         23  America, the Society for the Architecture of the

         24  City, Landmark West, Common Ground Community, the

         25  Actors' Fund of America, Hell's Kitchen Neighborhood
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          2  Association, the West 44th Street Block Association

          3  and the James Marston Fitch Associate Professor of

          4  Historic Preservation at Columbia University.

          5                 Three representatives of the owner

          6  testified in opposition to designation. In addition,

          7  the Commission received numerous communications in

          8  support of designation, including letters from area

          9  residents, the Northeast Office of the National

         10  Trust for Historic Preservation, the New York

         11  Chapter of the American Institute of Architects, the

         12  Clinton Special District Coalition, the Friends of

         13  Terra Cotta, the Housing Conservation Coordinators

         14  and architect Robert A.M. Stern. The building had

         15  been previously heard on October 6, 1988. On June

         16  28, 2005, the Commission designated the building a

         17  New York City landmark.

         18                 The Windermere, constructed in

         19  1880-81 and attributed to architect Theophilus G.

         20  Smith, is significant as the oldest-known large

         21  apartment complex remaining in an area that was one

         22  of Manhattan's first apartment-house districts. With

         23  its exuberant display of textured, corbelled, and

         24  polychromatic brickwork, the Windermere complex is a

         25  visually compelling, imposing, eclectic, and unified
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          2  group of three buildings anchoring the southwest

          3  corner of Ninth Avenue and West 57th Street.

          4                 Adding to its significance is the

          5  Windermere's role in the history of women's housing

          6  in New York City.

          7                 In the late 1890s, in an era in which

          8  housing options for single, self-supporting women

          9  were relatively limited, the Windermere was

         10  recognized as a remarkable home for a substantial

         11  population of these so-called "New Women."

         12                 The seven-story Windermere buildings

         13  are of impressive scale, topped by story-high

         14  cornices and crowned, at No. 400 West 57th Street,

         15  by a high, false pediment with an inset, blind brick

         16  arch. Although they vary in width, the three

         17  Windermere buildings are united by common materials

         18  and decorative elements. The most notable features

         19  of the buildings include the three-story bowed

         20  oriels at No. 400 West 57th Street and the robust,

         21  channeled brick pilasters, which corbel upon

         22  reaching the cornices. The Windermere's primary

         23  facades, which remain substantially intact after

         24  nearly 125 years, distinguish the building as an

         25  outstanding example of a large apartment complex of
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          2  its time.

          3                 The Commission urges you to affirm

          4  the designation of the Windermere.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 I just want to introduce my

          8  colleagues. Council Member James Oddo on my left and

          9  Councilman Leroy Comrie, Councilman Bill Perkins. We

         10  are joined today by Councilman David Yassky.

         11                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         12  questions?

         13                 Councilman Comrie.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: These pictures

         15  from the Dickey House are from 1965. You don't have

         16  any more recent?

         17                 MS. JACKIER: There should be some

         18  more recent photographs in there.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, I see

         20  more recent. It just doesn't look -- I don't see

         21  anything on here that looks special or even historic

         22  from these pictures. But I guess the uniqueness of

         23  the building and the location. The Robert and Anne

         24  Dickey House. But understanding the location and

         25  what's around it, I guess that's what makes it --
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          2                 MS. JACKIER: And the bode facade on

          3  the rear of the building is also something that's

          4  very significant. And it's also a building from 1810

          5  which means one of the few surviving federal

          6  buildings.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, Roger Lang,

          8  and Roseanne Haggerty. Is that correct? Okay. And

          9  they're both speaking on the Windermere and the

         10  Greenwich. You're going to have two minutes a piece.

         11  You don't have to take all two minutes. But two

         12  minutes. And you'll let me know. Don't look at the

         13  clock, because it's not the amount of time you have

         14  to speak.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 MS. HAGGERTY: My name is Roseanne

         17  Haggerty. I'm the president of Common Ground

         18  community, which is a not-for-profit housing

         19  development and management organization.

         20                 Typically we've worked with many

         21  historic properties, including the Times Square

         22  Hotel and the Prince George Hotel. I'm here to

         23  endorse the designation of the Windermere, and while

         24  a very strong and compelling case has been made by

         25  many others about the importance of designating this
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          2  building, I thought it would be useful to know what

          3  an exciting and viable option for its future as a

          4  mixed-income housing.

          5                 The Windermere is of great interest

          6  to the community, as I know you've heard in prior

          7  hearings, as well as to affordable housing groups.

          8  We have identified sources of financing to preserve

          9  this building, and Common Ground itself has worked

         10  with far more deteriorated buildings and knows the

         11  viability of a plan which creates badly needed,

         12  affordable and mixed income housing, and that

         13  structure.

         14                 So, I just wanted to commend the

         15  Committee for its concern for this building and to

         16  talk about the very significant future and community

         17  use that this building can be put toward.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Can you just push the button? Thank

         21  you.

         22                 MR. LANG: Good morning, Mr. Chairman,

         23  Councilors. I'm Roger Lang, speaking on behalf of

         24  the New York Landmarks Conservancy. Just a couple

         25  informal remarks. We're all taught to respect our

                                                            15

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  elders. When buildings reach the vintage of 125 and

          3  200 years respectively, they're something special,

          4  even if they don't look so hot right at the moment.

          5                 And I can appreciate Council Member

          6  Comrie's apprehension I can assure him that, as in

          7  the case of both the Windermere and 67 Greenwich, we

          8  did have professional engineers and architects

          9  evaluate the building and confirm that they have

         10  reuse potential, as Ms. Haggerty has just told you.

         11                 It's also important to note that both

         12  of these were heard by the Landmarks Commission a

         13  long time ago, and languaged on the heard but not

         14  designated list for, in one case, over three

         15  decades.

         16                 It's very important that the

         17  Commission has now acted to do this. We think it was

         18  a grave action on the Commission's part, and we

         19  think the Council should support it.

         20                 You should also be aware that both

         21  owners of the Windermere and 67 Greenwich are

         22  adamantly opposed to its designation, and that they

         23  share another trait in common, both have neglected

         24  their buildings which were inhabited, occupied and

         25  income-producing when they acquired them and are
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          2  derelict now. And all of that happened on the

          3  owner's watch, and it is to their shame that that

          4  occurred.

          5                 We urge you to designate these

          6  buildings because we think they have a promising

          7  future. Although they are now endangered, it is

          8  primarily by neglect and indifference and

          9  misunderstanding. And if we can get these buildings

         10  in the hands of understanding owners, or partners,

         11  we think that they can have a bright future in the

         12  New York community. And we presented expert

         13  testimony that I'd be happy to share with any

         14  Council members who might be interested or concerned

         15  about any particular aspect of these designations.

         16  But we certainly urge you to do both, and just a

         17  plug for the DeGroot House, which you will hear

         18  about from a subsequent panel, to certainly

         19  designate that as well.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         22                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         23  questions?

         24                 Okay, thank you both.

         25                 Next panel, we have Daniel McCalla,
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          2  Robert Furman, and Linda Eskenas.

          3                 Okay, we're ready. Who is speaking

          4  first? Identify yourself for the record.

          5                 MR. McCALLA: Good morning. My name is

          6  Daniel McCalla, a Brooklyn resident and a member of

          7  the Four Borough Neighborhood Preservation Alliance.

          8  I am here to testify and support the application to

          9  landmark 1674 Richmond Terrace.

         10                 Throughout the five boroughs of New

         11  York City, old homes are threatened by demolition

         12  for quick profits. Overdevelopment of City

         13  neighborhoods have created an odd mentality.

         14  Preserving our neighborhoods and homes is not just

         15  for snobs anymore.

         16                 1674 Richmond Terrace, a/k/a the John

         17  DeGroot home, still contains features of Greek and

         18  second empire architecture.

         19                 This building is one of the last

         20  mansion style homes from the old Richmond Terrace

         21  with a waterfront view. One hope's by approving the

         22  application to landmark the home will discourage the

         23  mentality that this neighborhood in Staten Island as

         24  a dumping ground.

         25                 Today the City Subcommittee can

                                                            18

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  continue a process of saving a small portion of

          3  Staten Island history. To some people a small

          4  portion is just too much to have around. Others

          5  think this is not economic development, and the

          6  landmark commission is just a city body that is in

          7  the way of progress.

          8                 It is my hope more applications can

          9  be approved so the City can move on to saving

         10  historic buildings in the other boroughs.

         11                 In closing, I hope the subcommittee

         12  has no problems with approving the application. This

         13  home is important for the survival of a neighborhood

         14  with American History and the survival of historic

         15  homes in Staten Island.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 MS. ESKENAS: Thank you. I'm Linda

         18  Eskenas, the owner of 1674 Richmond Terrace, the

         19  DeGroot House.

         20                 I'll just read something quickly from

         21  the Preservation League of Staten Island.

         22                 You've heard about the architectural

         23  features, the convex Mansard roof, which is very

         24  unusual, and actually John DeGroot's son started

         25  this house in 1810, and the present configuration of
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          2  the house was on a survey dated 1853, and the

          3  Mansard roof and the rest of the house was

          4  constructed in about 1870.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 We wish to thank the Landmarks

          7  Preservation Commission of the City of New York for

          8  designating this much loved, most important and

          9  extraordinary house and land. And for saying that it

         10  is right that people, and the peoples' government

         11  protect their historic neighborhoods, their quality

         12  of life, their beautiful, irreplaceable historic

         13  structures and their American rights to their past,

         14  present and future.

         15                 To honor those who came before us, so

         16  that 100 years from now they can see that people

         17  struggled here to fight for what is right and be

         18  inspired, and that is something we can never give

         19  up.

         20                 To know that this great house has the

         21  right to sit on its own land and look out from the

         22  high ground above the waterfront and seem to see a

         23  progression of the first inhabitants, Native

         24  Americans, 2100 BC who lived here in harmony with

         25  nature and the animals that flourished here.
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          2  Governor Dongan's house in 1688, Revolutionary War

          3  soldiers, Americans building their homes with their

          4  own hands; one of them John DeGroot in 1810.

          5                 The war of 1812 soldiers laid to rest

          6  across the street, many, many, many Civil War

          7  soldiers. In 1827, a few feet away, New York State

          8  proclaimed to the world in 1827 that every man,

          9  woman and child has the right to be free. Also said

         10  by Frederick Douglas who visited here, as did Jenny

         11  Lind, Santa Anna and Garibaldi, where Anna Leonownes

         12  wrote her memoirs.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Are you almost

         14  done?

         15                 MS. ESKENAS: No.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Well, your time

         17  is up.

         18                 MS. ESKENAS: Really?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

         20                 MS. ESKENAS: Can I finish up?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No.

         22                 MS. ESKENAS: Oh, come on.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You know what?

         24  We'll discuss it after the hearing.

         25                 Next. We appreciate it. We appreciate
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          2  it very much.

          3                 MS. ESKENAS: I hope so.

          4                 MR. FURMAN: My name is Robert Furman.

          5  I'm the Chairman of the Four Borough Neighborhood

          6  Preservation Alliance. I'm testifying as an

          7  individual in favor of the designation of the

          8  DeGroot House.

          9                 One of the issues that the Alliance

         10  is concerned about is landmark designations in the

         11  outer boroughs, so-called outer boroughs of New

         12  York, a look at any number of the -- a look at any

         13  survey of the designation will indicate that most of

         14  them are in Manhattan. Staten Island and Queens are

         15  notably weak in this area. Brooklyn does a bit

         16  better. But it is clear that Staten Island, Queens,

         17  the Bronx and Brooklyn do not get their fair share

         18  of landmark designations, and we appreciate the

         19  efforts of this Committee and of the Landmark

         20  Commission to do something about this in this forum

         21  today. And we urge you to pay attention to this

         22  issue in the future, since there are many historic

         23  sites in all of these other boroughs as Ms. Eskenas

         24  just indicated, and they are certainly worthy of

         25  your consideration.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

          4                 Do any of my colleagues have any

          5  questions?

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 The next item is a public siting

          8  item, LU No. 557. We have Daniel Klein representing

          9  the Department of Sanitation of New York.

         10                 As a courtesy to our colleague

         11  Councilman Yassky in whose district this item lies,

         12  I'd like to ask him to make some opening remarks and

         13  we'll go to your testimony.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chair.

         16                 I don't want to delay the witnesses'

         17  testimony, so I'll be very brief. And with your

         18  indulgence, I would like to be able to follow up

         19  with a couple of questions, based on the statement.

         20                 But this parking garage has been a

         21  real thorn in the side of the neighborhood for quite

         22  some time.

         23                 As I read over your prepared

         24  statement, Director Klein, so I know that you're not

         25  surprised by that. First of all, it's in Community
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          2  Board 1, but it serves Community District 3, which

          3  has been a source of discomfort for the neighbors,

          4  but beyond that the building simply has not been a

          5  good neighbor. As I know that Mr. Klein is aware, at

          6  the ULURP hearing on this before the Community

          7  Board, there was just a litany of complaints about

          8  the behavior of this facility. Everything from noise

          9  24 hours a day to parking trucks on the street to

         10  washing trucks out on the street, which leaves a

         11  real smell and dirt and mess, and I do know that the

         12  Department has been making efforts to move this

         13  facility, but unfortunately those have bogged down.

         14                 I recognize that the Committee is in

         15  a bit of a box here. There is no feasible

         16  alternative to go to right this second. On the other

         17  hand, I don't believe that we, as the Council, you

         18  know, should ratify the failure of the Department to

         19  move this facility.

         20                 So, I will tell you, Mr. Chair, it

         21  had been my inclination to vote against, when it

         22  comes to the full Council to vote against this Land

         23  Use action. I do want to try and be realistic and

         24  reasonable with respect to the Department's needs. I

         25  would like to hear their testimony and ask a couple
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          2  of questions, if I could.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MR. KLEIN: To also be brief, you have

          5  my statement, I'm just going to read it. If you want

          6  to go directly to questions, if it will save you

          7  some time?  Or if you want me to read it for the

          8  record, it's up to you?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I don't want to

         10  hear it.

         11                 Do my members want him to read it?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Compromise.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, Councilman

         14  Perkins suggests a compromise.

         15                 MR. KLEIN: A very quick summary. We

         16  can't disagree with anything that Council Member

         17  Yassky has just said. The Department of Sanitation

         18  has taken steps over the years to try to relocate

         19  this particular garage, which is Housing Community

         20  District 1, and does service Community District 3.

         21  In 2001, the Planning Commission approved the site

         22  selection application for a site in Community

         23  District 3, which is moving forward, unfortunately,

         24  at a very slow pace. The site consists of two

         25  private parcels, the owners of which had challenged

                                                            25

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  the City's actions, titled to those properties,

          3  vested to the City in December 2004. We have begun

          4  the design process for a new garage. That contract

          5  was awarded in June. The design will be completed

          6  next year. At this point we would advertise

          7  construction contracts for the new facility.

          8                 Property owners are still appealing

          9  the vesting of that property, and it's going through

         10  court. It's something that we have no control over

         11  the time it's going to take.

         12                 In the interim we've put forward a

         13  solution that we hope will minimize impacts on

         14  Community District 1. And what that solution

         15  consists of is that we're in the process of building

         16  a new garage for Community Districts 1 and 4 on

         17  Varrick Avenue, and we were to vacate two rented

         18  facilities when that building opens in under two

         19  years.

         20                 What we would like to do is relocate

         21  the operation that's at Ruttledge Avenue right now

         22  in Community District 1 to one of those buildings,

         23  the building on Johnson Avenue. It will still be in

         24  District 1, but will not be in a residential zone,

         25  and we would hope to be able to occupy that building
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          2  until the new garage gets through the legal hurdles

          3  and is constructed.

          4                 So, that basically in summary is what

          5  we want to do. As long as we are at the Ruttledge,

          6  we've taken a number of steps to try to improve --

          7  you know, the building isn't what's serving the

          8  community, it's the way we operate it, and we're

          9  trying to be sensitive, as sensitive as possible to

         10  neighborhoods around that building, and we've taken

         11  a number of steps that are identified by the bullets

         12  on the first pages before you.

         13                 We just had our budget consultation

         14  meetings with Community District 1, Community Board

         15  1 last Monday night. Commissioner Doherty was there,

         16  and we specifically asked if there are any ongoing

         17  problems now with the operation of the building, and

         18  the district manager and representatives that were

         19  there said no, there are no problems right now. And

         20  there is a mechanism to deal with them as they come

         21  up, basically immediately.  We have supervisors at

         22  that building every night to assure that we keep to

         23  the promise that we've made as far as operating that

         24  building, noise issues and parking issues.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,
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          2  Chair Felder, for permitting me to participate here.

          3                 Just on the timing, you're asking for

          4  a two-year extension, if I understand it, which

          5  would be until when?

          6                 MR. KLEIN: Would be til December

          7  30th, 2007. And that's a maximum date. We could be

          8  out before that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: That's what

         10  I'm wondering. Why so long? In other words, I've

         11  been to the new one that's under construction, can

         12  you give me a little more detail on the schedule

         13  there?

         14                 MR. KLEIN: Completion of that

         15  building should be done hopefully within 18 months,

         16  and then there will be a few months after that to

         17  deal with any punchless items that may not meet

         18  Department standards that weren't done properly.

         19                 So, we expect to occupy that building

         20  fully within two years to be able to vacate from

         21  this building and back to all the other rented

         22  space, again, within the two years.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: It's not

         24  possible that -- that can't be finished within a

         25  year, the new building?
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          2                 MR. KLEIN: The dates given by the

          3  construction supervisors right now is approximately

          4  18 months. They're doing whatever they can to try to

          5  expedite it.

          6                 Again, if it is expedited, and we're

          7  able to get out sooner, we'll be out of Ruttledge

          8  Street sooner. But, again, the two years is an

          9  outside date. We're trying to do it faster for that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: You know, I

         11  would ask the Chair to consider a shorter extension

         12  period than the two years, and my reasoning would be

         13  as follows:

         14                 On the one hand, I've been to the new

         15  one it's under construction. It's impressive. I

         16  mean, it's going to be a significant facility. It

         17  appears to be well on its way. I know that things

         18  always take longer than they look like they ought

         19  to. But, you know, I would like to give the

         20  Department every possible incentive to get that done

         21  faster rather than more slowly.

         22                 And indeed, if there becomes a risk

         23  that it's going to take more than two years, I think

         24  I'd like this Committee to know that, again, sooner

         25  rather than later.
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          2                 So, what I would propose, so that

          3  rather than this become a series of delay, delay,

          4  or, you know, temporary extension, temporary

          5  extension. So, what I would propose is a one-year

          6  extension of this lease period so that we can be --

          7  you know, either the Department will have finished

          8  and, you know, in that schedule and be able to move,

          9  or they'll be back here in a year and we'll have

         10  greater certainty about what their timetable will

         11  be.

         12                 I just would throw that out to the

         13  Committee.

         14                 MR. KLEIN: I would suggest that

         15  instead of that, I know right now that it will not

         16  be done within a year, and that it's not possible

         17  right now, the schedule that's worked out with the

         18  four prime contractors and the construction

         19  management team is scheduled it to be completed

         20  within 18 months.

         21                 What we can do is report back to the

         22  community on a regular basis, and yourself or

         23  anybody, semi-annually, tell you exactly where we

         24  are and if there's any slippage. We fully expect to

         25  meet this deadline.
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          2                 The only thing that would not allow

          3  us to do the relocation, that relocation will also

          4  require a ULURP for the Johnson Avenue facility,

          5  they'll go before the community board and the

          6  Planning Commission and come before you. If that's

          7  not approved, obviously we won't be able to relocate

          8  to Johnson Avenue. But construction right now is

          9  scheduled to be done in 18 months, it cannot be done

         10  in 12 months. And to set up an artificial deadline

         11  that's not attainable, I don't think serves our

         12  purposes or your purposes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Councilman

         14  Perkins.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, thank

         16  you very much.

         17                 The Community Board concerns resulted

         18  in the institution of a number of changes in

         19  response to the complaints, and you list these

         20  changes. How long have they been in effect?

         21                 MR. KLEIN: They've been in effect

         22  since this spring.

         23                 Basically we had our public hearings.

         24  We had two public hearings with the community board,

         25  I believe it was April and May. And these were put
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          2  in almost immediately.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And what is

          4  the community's -- I mean, is it better?

          5                 MR. KLEIN: Again, we just had

          6  meetings, a budget consultation meeting with the

          7  community last Monday night and we asked them if

          8  there were any complaints along these lines and they

          9  said right now there aren't. Parking is very much

         10  improved. There is no parking in front of any of

         11  these schools that are on the next block, there's a

         12  Yeshiva the next block and a public school and an

         13  armory. We no longer park in front of those at all.

         14  So they're very satisfied with what's occurred.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

         17  colleagues -- Councilman Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: A point of

         19  information. I was wondering what Council Member

         20  Yassky plans on doing tomorrow? Do you know?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, like I

         22  said, I think a reasonable solution would be a

         23  one-year extension. I understand you're saying, you

         24  know, 18 months is -- there's no way they can do it

         25  faster. I'd really like to see every effort made to
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          2  do it faster. And if every effort proves unavailing,

          3  then we'll have to come back and do it again. But it

          4  seems to me that this has been going on for such a

          5  long time, and the facility you have there, the best

          6  I can tell is well on its way, that every effort

          7  ought to be made to do it faster.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So...

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: With the

         10  one-year extension I would be prepared to vote for

         11  it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And if it's the

         13  two year, you're going to vote no?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I would vote

         15  no.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chair.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Are you saying

         19  at all, Mr. Klein, that you've already signed

         20  contracts with the construction managers and the

         21  construction people for 18 months? Is that already

         22  signed contracts?

         23                 MR. KLEIN: No. This is an ongoing

         24  facility. Construction started several years ago,

         25  and right now the completion date is scheduled, the
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          2  anticipated completion date is approximately 18

          3  months from now, from today.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And that's --

          5                 MR. KLEIN: That's the contracts they

          6  have. There is nothing --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Do you have

          8  performance contracts for that?

          9                 MR. KLEIN: There is nothing in the

         10  contract to encourage expediting the process. These

         11  are signed contracts from two years ago. The firms,

         12  the four prime contractors and the subcontractors --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, you do

         14  have signed contracts. That's what I asked you.

         15                 MR. KLEIN: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The contracts

         17  are already signed to be completed, the work, 18

         18  months from now?

         19                 MR. KLEIN: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, that's

         21  what I'm asking. And you don't have an opportunity

         22  like they do at the highway for all bridge contracts

         23  where they can expedite it and get a bonus?

         24                 MR. KLEIN: No.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you. Thank

          3  you for your testimony.

          4                 We are going to vote now. And we're

          5  going to vote first on all the landmark items. We're

          6  ready when you are.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Felder.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I vote yes.

          9                 We're only voting on the landmark

         10  items.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         12  Perkins.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye on all.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         15  Comrie.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm going to

         17  just explain my vote. I'm going to vote aye on all.

         18  I still think the Dickey House is an ugly building.

         19  I mean, I can understand it from the historical

         20  term, but I don't see a thing on the building. But I

         21  vote aye on all.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         23  Oddo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands
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          2  at four in the affirmative, none in the negative and

          3  no abstentions, and it refers to the full Land Use

          4  Committee.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. Now on the

          6  next item, on the Sanitation depot, I would like to

          7  recommend to my colleagues that we vote on a

          8  modification, and the one that Councilman Yassky

          9  proposed to only give them a one-year lease, I just

         10  want to add that in addition to the points that were

         11  made, I think that I'm delighted to hear that there

         12  has been a great improvement at the site, and I

         13  think we all hope that that continues to be the

         14  case.

         15                 And if that is the case, since we try

         16  to be reasonable, when you come back for a year, if

         17  the Sanitation Department has been a good neighbor

         18  all through, and if you need another few months, I

         19  think that we will be happy to give it to you.

         20                 On the other hand, if things are

         21  going well for a few months, and now suddenly things

         22  seem to turn, I hope not, but sometimes that does

         23  happen, then the year, the mark of the year, despite

         24  Mr. Klein's testimony that they can't be finished

         25  within a year, there's still a purpose for the year.
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          2  The year is time of reckoning, just like the new

          3  year that's coming up on the Hebrew Calendar. So we

          4  come back a year later and see what's going on.

          5                 Hopefully things will have continued

          6  being good and the neighbors will be happy, and we

          7  won't have to think about anything else. So, it will

          8  just be some more paperwork which the City, you

          9  know, we are famous for.

         10                 So, I think that's a good

         11  recommendation. It lends some accountability, maybe

         12  it will pressure, if possible, things to get rushed

         13  up a little bit. And it also allows a Council member

         14  who is trying to protect his neighbor to go back to

         15  his constituents and say, look, we didn't hit a home

         16  run, but we managed at least to work out some

         17  compromise where there will be some accountability.

         18  And I think this compromise is Salomonian

         19  (phonetic). Is that how it's said? I don't know.

         20  Whatever. You get the deal.

         21                 So, I vote for the modification, and

         22  I recommend my colleagues to do the same.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Felder.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member
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          2  Perkins.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Solmon. I

          4  mean yes.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          6  Comrie.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes to the

          8  modification.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         10  Oddo.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         13  at four in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

         14  abstentions and refers to the full Land Use

         15  Committee.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         17                 For the people who are here from

         18  Columbia, very important, the meeting is not over

         19  until you do this (clapping). The meeting is

         20  adjourned.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 11:05 a.m.)

         22

         23

         24
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